CITY OF FREEPORT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
THE FREEPORT CITY COUNCIL
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 7TH, 2011, 6:00 P.M.
FREEPORT MUNICIPAL COURT ROOM
FREEPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT, 430 NORTH BRAZOSPORT BLVD.

AGENDA FORMAL SESSION

- l. Call to Order.
- Invocation.
- 3. Pledge of Allegiance.
- 4. Consideration of approving the October 17th, 2011 Council Minutes. Pg. 667-669
- 5. Attending citizens and their business.
- 6. Peoples's Choice Award presentation to the Freeport Fire/ EMS for their winning participation in the 2011 Freeport Haunted Museum.
- 7. Proclamation for John Stanford, Jr. Pg. 670
- 8. Consideration of setting December 5th, 2011 for a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Commission to consider a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of said City, codified as Chapter 155 of the Code of Ordinances of said City, adding provisions allowing a decorative fence in front yards, specifying regulations therefor and containing an exception for existing front yard fences. Pg. 671
- Consideration of approving an engineering service agreement with John D. Mercer & Associates, Inc., for design of improvements to the Central Lift Station.
 Pg. 672-710
- Consideration of approving Ordinance 2011-2293 amending the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012. Pg. 711-715
- Consideration of signing the replats of Block 6, Lots 23 & 24, Southview Gardens Subdivision, known as Cortez and Garcia Subdivisions, 806 W. 11th Street. Pg. 716
- 12. Consideration of expending court funds to purchase 3 police radios. Pg. 717-718
- 13. Consideration of canceling the December 19th, 2011 council meeting.

14. Consideration of the approval of any action to be taken as a result of closed executive session.

Executive Session:

Section 551.071, Government Code

Consultation with City Attorney concerning pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers or other matter in which his duty to the City Council under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551, Government Code:

· Removal of members on board and commissions.

Adjourn

Items not necessary discussed in the order they appear on the agenda. The Council at its discretion may take action on any or all of the items as listed.

This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Open Meeting Act. (Chapter 551, Government Code).

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Freeport will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons attending City Council Meetings. Request should be received 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the City Secretary office at 979-233-3526.

I, Delia Munoz City Secretary for the City of Freeport, Texas certify that this agenda was posted on the official bulletin board/glass door of City Hall, facing the rear parking lot of the building, with 24 hours a day public access, 200 West 2nd Street, Freeport Texas, November 4th, 2011 at or before 5:00 p.m.

City Secretary - Delia Muñoz City of Freeport, Texas State of Texas

County of Brazoria

City of Freeport

BE IT REMEMBERED, that the City Council of the City of Freeport met on Monday, October 17th, 2011 at 6:05 p.m., at the Freeport Police Department, Municipal Court Room, 430 North Brazosport Boulevard, for the purpose of considering the following agenda items:

City Council: Norma Moreno Garcia

Michelle Kent Fred Bolton Nicolosa Mireles Sandra Barbree

Staff: Jeff Pynes, City Manager

Gilbert Arispe, Asst. City Manager Delia Munoz, City Secretary Brian Davis, Fire Chief

Ty Morrow, Police Chief Larry Fansher, Parks Director

Visitors Annette Sanford Shannon Daughtry

Gina Adams
Lalo Garcia
Lila Lloyd
Jim Pirrung
Dorothy Pirrung

Call to order.

Mayor Norma Garcia opened the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

Invocation.

City Attorney Wallace Shaw offered the invocation.

Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Norma Garcia led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Consideration of approving the October 3rd, 2011 Council Minutes.

On a motion by Councilwoman Kent, seconded by Councilman Bolton, with all present voting "aye", Council unanimously approved the October 3rd, 2011 Council Minutes.

Attending citizens and their business.

There were none.

Consideration of selling the City's interest on Block 16, Lot 16, Velasco Townsite, known as 317 South Gulf Boulevard, Tx. Id. 8110-0206-000.

On a motion by Councilman Bolton, seconded by Councilwoman Kent, with all present voting "aye", Council unanimously approved selling the City's interest on Block 16, Lot 16, Velasco Townsite, known as 317 South Gulf Boulevard, Tx. Id. 8110-0206-000.

Consideration of selling the City's interest on Block 133, E of Lot 9 & 10, Freeport Townsite, known as 1204 W. 5th Street, Tx. Id. 4200-1357-000.

On a motion by Councilman Bolton, seconded by Councilwoman Mireles, with all present voting, Council unanimously rejected selling the City's interest on Block 133, E. of Lot 9 & 10, Freeport Townsite, known as 1204 W. 5th Street, Tx. Id. 4200-1357-000.

Consideration of selling the City's interest on Abstract 211, C. Henniger, Tract 1 0.75 acres, Mystery Harbor Lane, Tx. Id. 0211-0014-000.

On a motion by Councilman Bolton, seconded by Councilwoman Mireles, with all present voting, Council unanimously rejected selling the City's interest on Abstract 211, C. Henniger, Tract 1 0.75 acres, Mystery Harbor Lane, Tx. Id. 0211-0014-000.

Consideration of approving Resolution No. 2011-2271 appointing qualified persons(s) to fill an unexpired term(s) on the Historical Board and Main Street Advisory Board of said City.

On a motion by Councilwoman Kent, seconded by Councilwoman Barbree, with all present voting "aye". Council unanimously approved Iwest Strambler and Denise Harper to fill an unexpired terms on the Historical Board and Main Street Advisory Board of said City.

Consideration of approving a request from the Fraternity of Eagles Aerie # 3111, 6818

E. Hwy. 332, to conduct their annual Turkey Shoot every Sunday from Noon to 4:00 p.m. beginning October 23rd, 2011 and ending December 18th, 2011.

On a motion by Councilwoman Kent, seconded by Councilwoman Barbree, with all present voting "aye". Council unanimously approved a request from the Fraternity of Eagles Aerie #3111, 6118 E. Hwy. 332, to conduct their annual Turkey Shoot every Sunday from Noon to 4:00 p.m. beginning October 23rd, 2011 and ending December 18th, 2011.

Consideration of approving Ordinance No. 2011-2292 amending Division (B) of Section 71.21 of the Code of Ordinances, which establishes the prima facie speed limit for school crossing zones of 20 miles per hour, to adjust the times therein specified for the Velasco Elementary, Lanier Middle School, Brazosport High School and Freeport Intermediate School speed zones to the current needs of each such school.

On a motion by Councilwoman Kent, seconded by Councilwoman Mireles, with all present voting 4 to 1, Council approved Ordinance No. 2011-2292 amending Division (B) of Section 71.21 of the Code of Ordinances, which establishes the prima facie speed limit for school crossing zones of 20 miles per hour, to adjust the times therein specified for the Velasco Elementary, Lanier Middle School, Brazosport High School and Freeport Intermediate School speed zones to the current needs of each such school.

Adjourn

On a motion by Councilwoman Barbree, seconded by Councilwoman Kent, with all present voting "aye", the meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

Delia Muñoz City Secretary

THE CITY OF FREEPORT, TEXAS

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, the City of Freeport would like to formally recognize and acknowledge John Stanford, Jr. for his dedicated 37 years of service to the City of Freeport; and

WHEREAS, John Stanford, Jr. served the City of Freeport Fire and Emergency Medical Service beginning in 1972 as a reserve and in supervisory ranks within the organization of reserves up to the rank of Reserve Assistant Chief; and

WHEREAS, John Stanford, Jr. was promoted in 1997 as the commanding Chief of the Freeport Fire and Emergency Medical Service. During his tenure he lead the agencies for twelve years increasing staffing and professional development of his staff; and

WHEREAS, John Stanford, Jr. further served the City of Freeport in increased levels of responsibility as the Emergency Management Coordinator, a member of the Board of Adjustments and Appeals, a member of the Charter Review Commission, while also being duly elected and served two election terms as a City Councilman, while also serving as Mayor Pro Tempore; and

NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor Norma Moreno Garcia, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of Freeport in the State of Texas, do hereby proclaim February 8, to be "John Stanford, Jr. DAY in the City of Freeport" and furthermore Freeport Fire and Emergency Medical Service Station 1 will hereafter be dedicated to and known as the "John Stanford, Jr. Freeport Fire / EMS Station 1".

TO ALL PERSONS IN INTEREST, CITIZENS, CORPORATIONS, AND FIRMS, THEIR AGENTS AND ATTORNEYS, AND TO ALL PERSONS, FIRMS, CORPORATIONS, INHABITANTS AND LAND OWNERS OF AND IN THE CITY OF FREEPORT, BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS.

NOTICE

A joint public hearing will be held on Monday, December 5, 2011, at 6:00 o'clock p.m., central standard time, at the Police Department Municipal Courtroom of the City of Freeport, Texas, located at 430 North Brazosport Boulevard, within the corporate limits of said city, in Brazoria County, Texas, at which time and place the City Council and the Planning Commission of said city will conduct a joint public hearing to consider a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of said city, codified as Chapter 155 of the Code of Ordinances of said City, adding provisions allowing a decorative fence in front yards, specifying regulations therefor and containing an exception for existing front yard fences.

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FREEPORT, TEXAS,

made on the ___day of ________, 2011.

Delia Munoz, City Secretary,
City of Freeport, Texas

<u>NOTE</u>: This notice should be published in the Brazosport Facts <u>ONE</u> (1) time only at least fifteen (15) full days prior to the date of the public hearing.

JOHN D. MERCER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

John D. Mercer PE President

Consulting Engineers

October 26, 2011

City of Freeport 200 West Second Street Freeport, TX 77541

Attn: Gilbert Arispe

Engineering Contract for Central Lift Station RE:

Dear Sir:

Herewith find the proposed Engineering Services Agreement for design of Improvements to the Central Lift Station. If the agreement is acceptable as presented, please have consideration of approval placed on the next City Council meeting.

Sincerely,

JOHN D. MERCER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

John D. Mercer, P.E. President

ENGINEERING CONTRACT FOR THE THE CITY OF FREEPORT

IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CENTRAL LIFT STATION

JOHN D. MERCER & ASSOCIATES, INC. CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.01 Scope 1	
ARTICLE 2 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 1	
2.01 General 1	
Z.OT General	
ARTICLE 3 – TIMES FOR RENDERING SURVICES 1	
3.01 General	
3.02 Suspension	
ARTICLE 4 - PAYMENTS TO ENGINFER 2	
4.01 Methods of Payment for Services and Reimbursable Expenses of Engineer	
4.02 Other Provisions Concerning Payments	
ARTICLE 5 - OPINIONS OF COST	
5.01 - Opinions of Probable Construction Cost	
5.02 - Designing to Construction Cost Limit	
5 03 - Opinions of Total Project Costs	
ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS	
6.01 Standards of Performance	
6.02 Authorized Project Representatives	
6.03 Design without Construction Phase Services	
6.04 Use of Documents	
6.05 Insurance	
6.06 Termination	
6.07 Controlling Law 6	
6.08 Successors, Assigns and Beneficiaries	
6.09 Dispute Resolution	
6.10 Hazardous Environmental Condition	
6.11 Allocation of Risks 7	
6.12 Notices	
6.13 Survival	
6.14 Severability	
6.15 Waiver	
6.16 Headings	
ARTICLE 7 - DEFINATIONS =	
7 01 Defined Terms 9	
ARTICLE 8 - EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS	2
8.01 Exhibits Included	2
8.02 Total Agreement12	2-13

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER

1.01 Scope

- A. ENGINEER shall provide the Basic and Additional Services set forth herein and in Exhibit A.
- B. Upon this Agreement becoming effective. ENGINEER is authorized to begin Basic Services as set forth in Exhibit A.
- C. If authorized by OWNER, ENGINEER shall furnish Resident Project Representative(s) with duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority as set forth in Exhibit D.

ARTICLE 2 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

2.01 General

A. OWNER shall have the responsibilities set forth herein and in Exhibit B.

ARTICLE 3 - TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES

3.01 General

- A. ENGINEER's services and compensation under this Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the orderly and continuous progress of the Project through completion. Unless specific periods of time or specific dates for providing services are specified in this Agreement. ENGINEER's obligation to render services hereunder will be for a period which may reasonably be required for the completion of said services.
- B. If in this Agreement specific periods of time for rendering services are set forth or specific dates by which services are to be completed are provided, and if such periods of time or dates are changed through no fault of ENGINEER, the rates and amounts of compensation provided for herein shall be subject to equitable adjustment. If OWNER has requested changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project, the time of performance of ENGINEER's services shall be adjusted equitably.
 - C. For purposes of this Agreement the term "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours.

3.02 Suspension

- A. If OWNER fails to give prompt written authorization to proceed with any phase of services after completion of the immediately preceding phase, or if ENGINEER's services are delayed through no fault of ENGINEER, ENGINEER may, after giving seven days written notice to OWNER, su-pend services under this Agreement
- B. If ENGINEER's services are delayed or suspended in whole or in part by OWNER, or if ENGINEER's services are extended by Contractor's actions or inactions for more than 90 days through no fault of ENGINEER, ENGINEER shall be entitled to equitable adjustment of rates and amounts of compensation provided for elsewhere in this Agreement to reflect, reasonable costs incurred by ENGINEER in connection with, among other things, such delay or suspension and reactivation and the fact that the time for performance under this Agreement has been revised.

ARTICLE 4 - PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

4.01 Methods of Payment for Services and Reimbursable Expenses of ENGINEER

- A. For Basic Services. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services performed or furnished under Exhibits A, Part 1, Part 1, as set forth in Exhibit C
- B. For Additional Services. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Additional Services performed or furnished under Exhibit A, Part 2, as set forth in Exhibit C.
- C. For Reimbursable Expenses. In addition to payments provided for in paragraphs 4.01.A and 4.01.B, OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Reimbursable Expenses incurred by ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants as set forth in Exhibit.

4.02 Other Provisions Concerning Payments

- A. Preparation of Invoices. Invoices will be prepared in accordance with ENGINEER's standard invoicing practices and will be submitted to OWNER by ENGINEER, unless otherwise agreed. The amount billed in each invoice will be calculated as set forth in Exhibit C.
- B. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. If OWNER fails to make any payment due ENGINEER for services and expenses within 30 days after receipt of ENGINEER's invoice therefore, the amounts due ENGINEER will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day. In addition, ENGINEER may, after giving seven days written notice to OWNER, suspend services under this Agreement until ENGINEER has been paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and other related charges. Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.
- C. Disputed Invoices. In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so contested may be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid.

D. Payments Upon Termination.

- 1. In the event of any termination under paragraph 6.06, ENGINEER will be entitled to invoice OWNER and will be paid in accordance with Exhibit C for all services performed or turnished and all Reimbursable Expenses incurred through the effective date of termination.
- 2. In the event of termination by OWNER for convenience or by ENGINEER for cause, ENGINEER, in addition to invoicing for those items identified in subparagraph 4.02.D.1, shall be entitled to invoice OWNER and shall be paid a reasonable amount for services and expenses directly attributable to termination, both before and after the effective date of termination, such as reassignment of personnel costs of terminating contracts with ENGINEER's Consultants, and other related close-out costs, using methods and rates for Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit C.
- E. Records of ENGINEER's Costs—Records of ENGINEER's costs pertinent to ENGINEER's compensation under this Agreement shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. To the extent necessary to verify ENGINEER's charges and upon OWNER's timely request, copa's of such records will be made available to OWNER at cost.

F. Legislative Actions. In the event of legislative actions after the Effective Date of the Agreement by any level of government that impose taxes, fees, or costs on ENGINEER's services or other costs in connection with this Project or compensation therefore, such new taxes, fees, or costs shall be invoiced to and paid by OWNER as a Reimbursable Expense to which a Factor of 1.0 shall be applied. Should such taxes, fees, or costs be imposed, they shall be in addition to ENGINEER's estimated total compensation.

ARTICLE 5 - OPINIONS OF COST

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

A. ENGINEER's opinions of probable Construction Cost provided for herein are to be made on the basis of ENGINEER's experience and qualifications and represent ENGINEER's best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional generally familiar with the industry. However, since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or over the Contractor's methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions. ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable Construction Cost prepared by ENGINEER. If OWNER wishes greater assurance as to probable Construction Cost, OWNER shall employ an independent cost estimator as provided in Exhibit B.

5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit

A. If a Construction Cost limit is established between OWNER and ENGINEER, such Construction Cost limit and a statement of ENGINEER's rights and responsibilities with respect thereto will be specifically set forth in Exhibit F, "Construction Cost Limit," to this Agreement.

5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs

A. ENGINEER assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of opinions of Total Project Costs

ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

6.01 Standards of Performance

- A. The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by ENGINEER under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of ENGINEER's profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. ENGINEER makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with ENGINEER's services.
- B. ENGINEER shall be responsible for the technical accuracy of its services and documents resulting therefrom, and OWNER shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies therein. ENGINEER shall correct such deficiencies without additional compensation except to the extent such action is directly attributable to deficiencies in OWNER-furnished information.
- C. ENGINEER shall perform or furnish professional engineering and related services in all phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies. ENGINEER shall serve as OWNER's prime professional for the Project. ENGINEER may employ such ENGINEER's Consultants as ENGINEER deems necessary to assist in the performance or furnishing of the services. ENGINEER shall not be required to employ any ENGINEER's Consultant unacceptable to ENGINEER.
- D. ENGINEER and OWNER shall comply with applicable Laws or Regulations and OWNER-mandated standards. This Agreement is based on these requirements as of its Effective Date. Changes to these requirements after the Effective Date of this Agreement may be the basis for modifications to OWNER's responsibilities or to ENGINEER's scope of services, times of performance, or compensation.
- E. OWNER shall be responsible for, and ENGINEER may rely upon, the accuracy and completeness of all requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and other information furnished by OWNER to ENGINEER pursuant to this Agreement. ENGINEER may use such requirements, reports, data, and information in performing or furnishing services under this Agreement.

- F. OWNER shall make decisions and carry but its other responsibilities in a timely manner and shall bear all costs incident thereto so as not to delay the services of ENGINEER.
- G. Prior to the commencement of the Construction Phase, OWNER shall notify ENGINEER of any variations from the language indicated in Exhibit E. "Notice of Acceptability of Work," or of any other notice or certification that ENGINEER will be requested to provide to OWNER or third parties in connection with the Project. OWNER and ENGINEER shall reach agreement on the terms of any such requested notice or certification, and OWNER shall authorize such Additional Services as are necessary to enable ENGINEER to provide the notices or certifications requested.
- H. ENGINEER shall not be required to sign any documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in the ENGINEER's having to certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence the ENGINEER cannot ascertain. OWNER agrees not to make resolution of any dispute with the ENGINEER or payment of any amount due to the ENGINEER in any way contingent upon the ENGINEER's signing any such certification.
- I. During the Construction Phase, ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor's work, nor shall ENGINEER have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Contractor's work in progress, nor for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's furnishing and performing the Work.
- J. ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any Contractor's failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- K. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Contractor(s), subcontractor or supplier, or of any of the Contractor's agents or employees or any other persons (except ENGINEER's own employees) at the Site or otherwise furnishing or performing any of the Contractor's work; or for any decision made on interpretations or clarifications of the Contract Documents given by OWNER without consultation and advice of ENGINEER.
- L. The General Conditions for any construction contract documents prepared hereunder are to be the "Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract" as prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee (Document No. 1910-8, 1996 Edition) unless both parties mutually agree to use other General Conditions as specifically referenced in Exhibit J.

6.02 Authorized Project Representatives

A. Contemporaneous with the execution of this Agreement, ENGINEER and OWNER shall designate specific individuals to act as ENGINEER's and OWNER's representatives with respect to the services to be performed or furnished by ENGINEER and responsibilities of OWNER under this Agreement. Such individuals shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to the Project on behalf of each respective party.

6.03 Design without Construction Phase Services

- A. Should OWNER provide Construction Phase services with either OWNER's representatives or a third party, ENGINEER's Basic Services under this Agreement will be considered to be completed upon completion of the Final Design Phase or Bidding or Negotiating Phase as outlined in Exhibit A.
- B. It is understood and agreed that if ENGINEER's Basic Services under this Agreement do not include Project observation, or review of the Contractor's performance, or any other Construction Phase services, and that such services will be provided by OWNER, then OWNER assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the Contract Documents and for construction observation or review and waives any claims against the ENGINEER that may be in any way connected thereto.

6.04 Use of Documents

A. All Documents are instruments of service in respect to this Project, and ENGINEER shall retain an ownership and property interest therein (including the right of reuse at the discretion of the ENGINEER) whether or not the Project is completed.

- B. Copies of OWNER furnished data that may be relied upon by ENGINEER are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are delivered to the ENGINEER pursuant to Exhibit B. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or of other types that are furnished by OWNER to ENGINEER are only for convenience of ENGINEER. Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk.
- C. Copies of Documents that may be refied upon by OWNER are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the ENGINEER. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or of other types that are furnished by ENGINEER to OWNER are only for convenience of OWNER. Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk.
- D. Because data stored in electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or otherwise without authorization of the data's creator, the party receiving electronic files agrees that it will perform acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days, after which the receiving party shall be deemed to have accepted the data thus transferred. Any errors detected within the 60-day acceptance period will be corrected by the party delivering the electronic files. ENGINEER shall not be responsible to maintain documents stored in electronic media format after acceptance by OWNER.
- E. When transferring documents in electronic media format, ENGINEER makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used by ENGINEER at the beginning of this Project.
- F. OWNER may make and retain copies of Documents for information and reference in connection with use on the Project by OWNER. Such Documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by OWNER or others on extensions of the Project or on any other project. Any such reuse or modification without written verification or adaptation by ENGINEER, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at OWNER's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER or to ENGINEER's Consultants. OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting there from.
 - G. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.
- H. Any verification or adaptation of the Documents for extensions of the Project or for any other project will entitle ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by OWNER and ENGINEER

6.05 Insurance

- A. ENGINEER shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. "Insurance."
- B. OWNER shall produce and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G, "Insurance." OWNER shall cause ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants to be listed as additional insureds on any general liability or property insurance policies carried by OWNER which are applicable to the Project.
- C. OWNER shall require Contractor to purchase and maintain general liability and other insurance as specified in the Contract Documents and to cause ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants to be listed as additional insureds with respect to such liability and other insurance purchased and maintained by Contractor for the Project.
- D. OWNER and ENGINEER shall each deliver to the other certificates of insurance evidencing the coverages indicated in Exhibit G. Such certificates shall be furnished prior to commencement of ENGINEER's services and at renewals thereafter during the life of the Agreement
- E. All policies of property insurance shall contain provisions to the effect that ENGINEER's and ENGINEER's Consultants' interests are covered and that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any of the insureds or additional insureds thereunder.
- F. At any time, OWNER may request that ENGINEER, at OWNER's sole expense, provide additional insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised deductibles that are more protective than those specified in Exhibit G. If so requested by OWNER, with the concurrence of ENCHNEER and if commercially available, ENGINEER shall obtain and shall require

ENGINEER's Consultants to obtain such additional insurance coverage, different limits, or revised deductibles for such periods of time as requested by OWNER, and Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate these requirements.

6.06 Termination

- A. The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated:
 - 1. For cause,
 - a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party.
 - b. By ENGINEER:
 - upon seven days written notice if ENGINEER believes that ENGINEER is being requested by OWNER to furnish or perform services contrary to ENGINEER's responsibilities as a licensed professional; or
 - upon seven days written notice if the ENGINEER's services for the Project are delayed or suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond ENGINEER's control.
 - 3) ENGINEER shall have no hability to OWNER on account of such termination
 - c. Notwithstanding the foregoing this Agreement will not terminate as a result of such substantial failure if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of receipt of such notice, to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof; provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice.
 - 2. For convenience,
 - By OWNER effective upon the receipt of notice by ENGINEER.
- B. The terminating party under paragraphs 6.06.A.1 or 6.06.A.2 may set the effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow ENGINEER to demobilize personnel and equipment from the Site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly files.

6.07 Controlling Law

A. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

- A. OWNER and ENGINEER each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives of OWNER and ENGINEER (and to the extent permitted by paragraph 6.08.B the assigns of OWNER and ENGINEER) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this Agreement.
- B. Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but without limitation, moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated or restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.

- C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement.
- 1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by OWNER or ENGINEER to any Contractor's subcontractor, supplier, other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of them.
- 2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of OWNER and ENGINEER and not for the benefit of any other party. The OWNER agrees that the substance of the provisions of this paragraph 6-08.C shall appear in the Contract Documents.

6.09 Dispute Resolution

- A. OWNER and ENGINEER agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a period of 30 days from the date of notice prior to exercising their rights under Exhibit H or other provisions of this Agreement, or under law. In the absence of such an agreement, the parties may exercise their rights under law.
- B. If and to the extent that OWNER and ENCINEER have agreed on a method and procedure for resolving disputes between them arising out of or relating to this Agreement, such dispute resolution method and procedure is set forth in Exhibit H, "Dispute Resolution"

6.10 Hazardous Environmental Condition

- A. OWNER represents to Engineer that to the best of its knowledge a Hazardous Environmental Condition does not exist.
- B. OWNER has disclosed to the best of its knowledge to ENGINEER the existence of all Asbestos, PCB's, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material located at or near the Site, including type, quantity and location.
- C. If a Hazardous Environmental Condition is encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the obligation to notify OWNER and, to the extent of applicable Laws and Regulations appropriate governmental officials.
- D. It is acknowledged by both parties that ENGINEER's scope of services does not include any services related to a Hazardous Environmental Condition. In the event ENGINEER or any other party encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition, ENGINEER may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the Project affected thereby until OWNER: (i) retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental Condition; and (ii) warrants that the Site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations.
- E. OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER is performing professional services for OWNER and that ENGINEER is not and shall not be required to become an "arranger," operator," "generator," or "transporter" of hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1990 (CERCLA), which are or may be encountered at or near the Site in connection with ENGINEER's activities under this Agreement.
- F. If ENGINEER's services under this Agreement cannot be performed because of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, the existence of the condition shall justify ENGINEER's terminating this Agreement for cause on 30 days notice.

6.11 Allocation of Risks

A. Indemnification

1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless OWNER, OWNER's officers, directors, partners, and employees from and against any and all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of ENGINEER or ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, and ENGINEER's Consultants in the performance and furnishing of ENGINEER's services under this Agreement

- 2. To the fullest extent permitted by law. OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER, ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, and ENGINEER's Consultants from and against any and all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of OWNER or OWNER's officers, directors, partners, employees, and OWNER's consultants with respect to this Agreement or the Project.
- 3. To the fullest extent permitted by law ENGINEER's total hability to OWNER and anyone claiming by, through, or under OWNER for any cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of ENGINEER and in part by the negligence of OWNER or any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed the percentage share that ENGINEER's negligence bears to the total negligence of OWNER, ENGINEER, and all other negligent entities and individuals.
- 4. In addition to the indemnity provided under paragraph 6.11.A.2 of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and its officers, directors, partners, employees, and ENGINEER's Consultants from and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of or resulting from a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that (i) any such cost, loss, or damage is attributable to hodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than completed Work), including the loss of use resulting there from, and (ii) nothing in this paragraph 6.11,A.4, shall obligate OWNER to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence or willful misconduct.
- 5. The indemnification provision of paragraph 6 11.A.1 is subject to and limited by the provisions agreed to by OWNER and ENGINEER in Exhibit I, "Allocation of Risks," if any.

6.12 Notices

A. Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the appropriate party at its address on the signature page and given personally, or by registered or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier service. All notices shall be effective upon the date of receipt.

6.13 Survival

A. All express representations, indemnrheations, or limitations of liability included in this Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason.

6.14 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and ENGINEER, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

6.15 Waiver

A. Non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, not shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement.

6.16 Headings

A. The headings used in this Agreement are for general reference only and do not have special significance.

ARTICLE 7 - DEFINITIONS

7.01 Defined Terms

- A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) and printed with initial or all capital letters, the terms listed below have the meanings indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof:
 - 1. Addenda--Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Documents
 - 2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to OWNER by ENGINEER in accordance with Exhibit A, Part 2 of this Agreement
 - 3. Agreement This "Standard Forty of Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER for Professional Services," including those Exhants listed in Article 8 hereof
 - 4. Application for Payment: The form acceptable to ENGINEER which is to be used by Contractor in requesting progress or final payments for the completion of its Work and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
 - 5. Asbestos--Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
 - 6. Basic Services--The services to be performed for or furnished to OWNER by ENGINEER in accordance with Exhibit A, Part 1, of this Agreement.
 - 7. Bid-The offer or proposal of the bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
 - 8. Bidding Documents—The advertisement or invitation to Bid, instructions to bidders, the Bid form and attachments, the Bid bond, if any, the proposed Contract Documents, and all Addenda, if any.
 - 9. Change Order-A document recommended by ENGINEER, which is signed by Contractor and OWNER to authorize an addition, deletion or revision in the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Construction Agreement.
 - 10. Construction Agreement--The written instrument which is evidence of the agreement, contained in the Contract Documents, between OWNER and Contractor covering the Work.
 - 11. Construction Contract. The entire and integrated written agreement between the OWNER and Contractor concerning the Work.
 - 12. Construction Cost—The cost to OWNER of those portions of the entire Project designed or specified by ENGINEER. Construction Cost does not include costs of services of ENGINEER or other design professionals and consultants, cost of land, rights-of-way, or compensation for damages to properties, or OWNER's costs for legal, accounting, insurance counseling or auditing services, or interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the Project, or the cost of other services to be provided by others to OWNER pursuant to Exhibit B of this Agreement. Construction Cost is one of the items comprising Total Project Costs
 - 13. Contract Documents -Documents that establish the rights and obligations of the parties engaged in construction and include the Construction Agreement between OWNER and Contractor, Addenda (which pertain to the Contract Documents), Contractor's Bid (including documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid documentation submitted prior to the notice of award) when attached as an exhibit to the Construction Agreement, the notice to proceed, the bonds, appropriate certifications, the General Conditions, the Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications and the Drawings as the same are more specifically identified in the Construction Agreement, together with all Written Amendments, Change Orders. Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and ENGINEER's written interpretations and

clarifications issued on or after the Effective Date of the Construction Agreement. Approved Shop Drawings and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not Contract Documents.

- 14. Contract Price: The moneys payable by OWNER to Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and as stated in the Construction Agreement
- 15. Contract Times--The numbers of days or the dates stated in the Construction Agreement to: (i) achieve Substantial Completion, and (ii) complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by ENGINEER's written recommendation of final payment
 - 16. Contractor: An individual or entity with whom OWNER enters into a Construction Agreement.
- 17. Correction Period: The time after substantial Completion during which Contractor must correct, at no cost to OWNER, any Defective Work, normally one year after the date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by Laws or Regulations or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee or specific provision of the Contract Documents
- 18. Defective--An adjective which, when modifying the word Work, refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient, in that it does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to ENGINEER's recommendation of final payment.
- 19. Documents Data reports, Drawings Specifications, Record Drawings, and other deliverables, whether in printed or electronic media format, provided or furnished in appropriate phases by ENGINEER to OWNER pursuant to this Agreement.
- 20. Drawings--That part of the Contract Documents prepared or approved by ENGINEER which graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor. Shop Drawings are not Drawings as so defined.
- 21. Effective Date of the Construction Agreement--The date indicated in the Construction Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Construction Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.
- 22. Effective Date of the Agreement. The date indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date or, which the Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.
- 23. ENGINEER's Consultants--Individuals or entities having a contract with ENGINEER to furnish services with respect to this Project as ENGINEER's independent professional associates, consultants, subcontractors, or vendors. The term ENGINEER includes ENGINEER's Consultants.
- 24. Field Order- A written order issued by ENGINEER which directs minor changes in the Work but which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- 25. General Conditions-That part of the Contract Documents which sets forth terms, conditions, and procedures that govern the Work to be performed or furnished by Contractor with respect to the Project.
- 26. Hazardous Environmental Condition--The presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCB's, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Materials in such quantities or circumstances that may present a substantial danger to persons or property exposed thereto in connection with the Work
- 27. Hazardous Waste. The term Hazardous Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as amended from time to time.
- 28. Laws and Regulations: Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, standards, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.

- 29. PCB's Polychlorinated biphenyls
- 30. Petroleum Petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute), such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed with other non-Hazardous Waste and crude oils.
- 31. Radioactive Materials--Source, special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amouded from time to time
- 32. Record Drawings. The Drawings is issued for construction on which the ENGINEER, upon completion of the Work, has shown changes due to Addenda or Change Orders and other information which ENGINEER considers significant based on record documents furnished by Contractor to ENGINEER and which were annotated by Contractor to show changes made during construction.
- 33. Reimbursable Expenses. The expenses incurred directly by ENGINEER in connection with the performing or furnishing of Basic and Additional Services for the Project for which OWNER shall pay ENGINEER as indicated in Exhibit C.
- 34. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of ENGINEER, if any, assigned to assist ENGINEER at the Site during the Construction Phase. The Resident Project Representative will be ENGINEER's agent or employee and under ENGINEER's supervision. As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative includes any assistants of Resident Project Representative agreed to by OWNER—The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project Representative are as set forth in Exhibit D.
- 35. Samples Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and which establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- 36. Shop Drawings-- All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to ENGINEER to illustrate some portion of the Work
- 37. Site: Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by OWNER upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands furnished by OWNER which are designated for use of Contractor.
- 38. Specifications—That part of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto.
- 39. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of ENGINEER, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.
- 40. Supplementary Conditions--That part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements the General Conditions.
- 41. Total Project Costs. The sum of the Construction Cost allowances for contingencies, the total costs of services of ENGINEER or other design professionals and consultants, cost of land, rights-of-way, or compensation for damages to properties, or OWNER's costs for legal, accounting, insurance counseling or auditing services, or interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the Project, or the cost of other services to be provided by others to OWNER pursuant to Exhibit B of this Agreement
- 42. Work—The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents with respect to this Project. Work includes and is the result of performing or

furnishing labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction and furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and all equipment into such construction, all as required by the Contract Documents.

- 43. Work Change Directive. A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the Construction Agreement and signed by OWNER upon recommendation of the ENGINEER, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or responding to differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to emergencies. A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the change directed or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Price or Contract Times.
- 44. Written Amendment. A written according to the Contract Documents signed by OWNER and Contractor on or after the Effective Date of the Construction. Agreement and normally dealing with the non-engineering or non-technical rather than strictly construction-related aspects of the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 8 - EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

8.01 Exhibits Included

- A. Exhibits A, "ENGINEER's Services" consisting of 8 pages each.
- B. Exhibit B. "OWNER's Responsibilities." consisting of 2 pages.
- C. Exhibit C, "Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses," consisting of 3 pages each.
- D. Exhibit D, "Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative," consisting of 4 pages.
- E. Exhibit E. "Notice of Acceptability of Work," consisting of 2 pages
- F. Exhibit F. "Construction Cost Limit," consisting of pages
 - G. Exhibit G. "Insurance." consisting of 2 pages.
- H. Exhibit H. "Dispute Resolution." consisting of ____ pages:
 - I. Exhibit I, "Allocation of Risks," consisting of 1 pages.

8.02 Total Agreement

A. This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 13 inclusive, together with the Exhibits identified above) constitutes the entire agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed written instrument.

1 W	
OWNER:	ENGINEER.
City of Freeport	John D. Mercer & Associates, Inc.
Ву:	By: John D. Mercer, P.E.
Title:	Title: President
Date Signed:	Date Signed: Oct 24, 2011
Address for giving notice-	Address for giving notices:
	P.O. Box 930
	Galveston TX 77553
Designated Representative (paragraph 6.02 A)	Designated Representative (paragraph 6.02.A):
	John D. Mercer, P.E.
Title:	Title: President
Phone Number:	Phone Number: (409) 741-8500
Facsimile Number	Facsimile Number (409) 741-8501

E-Mail Address:

F. Mail Address. jdmgalveston@jdmercer.com

IN WITNESS WHEREOL the parties hende held executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is indicated on

That is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 8 pages, referred to in and part of the Agraciment between OWNER and ENGINEER for Professional Service dated	25
uatti	lr

OWNER ______ENGINEER ______

ENGINEER's Services

Article I of the Agreement is amended and sopolemented to include the following agreement of the parties. ENGINEER shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set for a below.

PART 1 -- BASIC SERVICES

A1.01 Study and Report Phase

A. ENGINEER shall:

- 1. Consult with OWNER to define and clarify OWNER's requirements for the Project and available data.
- 2. Advise OWNER as to the necessity of OWNER's providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B which are not part of ENGINEER's Basic Services, and assist OWNER in obtaining such data and services.
- Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to approve the
 portions of the Project designed or specified by ENGINEER, including but not limited to mitigating measures identified in
 the environmental assessment.
- 4. Identify and evaluate alternate Jobptons as may be available to OWNER and, after consultation with OWNER, recommend to OWNER the solution which in FNGINEER's judgment meets OWNER's requirements for the Project.
- 5. Prepare a report (the "Report") which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, sketches and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the agreed-to requirements, considerations involved, and those alternate solutions available to OWNER which ENGINEER recommends. This Report will be accompanied by ENGINEER's opinion of Total Project Costs for each solution which is so recommended for the Project with each component separately itemized, including the following, which will be separately itemized: opinion of probable Construction Cost, allowances for contagnocies and for the estimated total costs of design, professional, and related services provided by ENGINEER and, on the basis of information furnished by OWNER, allowances for other items and services included within the definition of Total Project Costs.
- 6. Furnish four (4) review copies of the Report to OWNER within 45 days of authorization to begin services and review it with OWNER.
- 7. Revise the Report in response to OWNER's and other parties' comments, as appropriate, and furnish four (4) final copies of the revised Report to the OWNER within 14 days after completion of reviewing it with OWNER.
- B. ENGINEER's services under the Steel) and Report Phase will be considered complete on the date when the final copies of the revised Report have been delivered to OWNER

A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase

- A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Poport, selection by OWNER of a recommended solution and indication of any specific modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character or design requirements of the Project desired by OWNER, and upon written authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER shall:
 - 1. On the basis of the above acceptance, selection, and authorization, prepare Preliminary Design Phase documents consisting of final design criteria, preliminary drawings, outline specifications and written descriptions of the Project.

- 2. Perform field investigations of existing conditions as required for design (Note: this does not include field surveying as necessary to make measured drawings of existing conditions, see Part 2, A2.01, A2). Obtain utility mapping for design purposes from OWNER and other utility owners.
- 3. Advise OWNER if additional reports, data, information, or services of the types described in Exhibit B are necessary and assist OWNER in obtaining such reports, data, information, or services.
- 4. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, submit a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost and any adjustments to Total Project Costs known to ENGINEER, which will be itemized as provided in paragraph A1.01 A.5
 - 5. Furnish the Prelimit of y Design Phase documents to and review them with OWNER.
- 6. Submit to OWNER four (4) fina copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents and revised opinion of probable Construction Cost within 45 days after authorization to proceed with this phase.
- B. ENGINEER's services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when final copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents have been delivered to OWNER.

A1.03 Final Design Phase

- A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Preliminary Design Phase documents and revised opinion of probable Construction Cost as determined in the Preliminary Design Phase, but subject to any OWNER-directed modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of or for the Project, and upon written authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER shall:
 - 1. On the basis of the above acceptance, direction and authorization, prepare final Drawings indicating the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. Specifications will be prepared, where appropriate, in general conformance with the format of the Construction Specifications Institute.
 - 2. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for OWNER's use in filing applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve the final design of the Project and assist OWNER in consultations with appropriate authorities.
 - 3. Advise OWNER of any adjustments to the opinion of probable Construction Cost and any adjustments to Total Project Costs known to ENGINEER, itemized as provided in paragraph A1 01.A.5.
 - 4. Prepare and furnish Bidding Documents for review and approval by OWNER, its legal counsel, and other advisors, as appropriate, and assist OWNER in the preparation of other related documents.
 - 5. Submit one (1) final, reproducible unbound copy of the Bidding Documents and a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost to OWNER within 90 days after authorization to proceed with this phase
- B. In the event that the Work designed of specified by ENGINEER is to be performed or furnished under more than one prime contract, or if ENGINEER's services are to be separately sequenced with the work of one or more prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking). OWNER and ENGINEER shall, prior to commencement of the Final Design Phase, develop a schedule for performance of ENGINEER's services during the Final Design, Bidding or Negotiating, Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly such services as are applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts. This schedule is to be prepared and included in or become an amendment to Exhibit A whether or not the work under such contracts is to proceed concurrently.
- C. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by ENGINEER upon which the ENGINEER's compensation has been established under this Agreement is one
- D. ENGINEER's services under the Line Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when the submittals required by paragraph A1.03 A.5 have been delicated to OWNER.

A1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase

- A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Bidding Documents and the most recent opinion of probable Construction Cost as determined in the binal Design Phase, and only upon an amendment to this Agreement providing for payments by the OWNER to ENGINEER for Bidding or Negeriating Phase services and written authorization by OWNER to proceed, ENGINEER shall.
 - 1. Assist OWNER in advertising for and obtaining bids or negotiating proposals for the Work and, where applicable, maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom Bidding Documents have been issued, attend pre-Bid conferences, if any, and receive and process Contractor deposits or charges for the Bidding Documents.
 - 2. Issue Addenda as appropriate to classify, correct, or change the Bidding Documents.
 - 3. Consult with OWNER as to the area ptability of subcontractors, suppliers, and other individuals and entities proposed by Contractor for those portions of the Work as to which such acceptability is required by the Bidding Documents.
 - 4. Perform or provide the following additional Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or deliverables: NONE
 - Attend the Bid opening, prepare Bid tabulation sheets, and assist OWNER in evaluating Bids or proposals and in assembling and awarding contracts for the Work.
- B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of the Construction Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective Contractors (except as may be required if Exhibit F is a part of this Agreement).

A1.05 Construction Phase

- A. Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and only upon an amendment to this Agreement providing for payment by the OWNER to ENGINEER for Construction Phase services and written authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER shall:
 - 1. General Administration of Construction Contract. Consult with OWNER and act as OWNER's representative as provided in the General Conditions. The extent and limitations of the duties, responsibilities and authority of ENGINEER as assigned in said General Conditions shall not be modified, except as ENGINEER may otherwise agree in writing. All of OWNER's instructions to Contractor will be issued through ENGINEER, who shall have authority to act on behalf of OWNER in dealings with Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and said General Conditions except as otherwise provided in writing.
 - 2. Resident Project Representative (RPR). Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist the ENGINEER and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor's work. Duties, responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D. The furnishing of such RPR's services will not extend ENGINEER's responsibilities or authority beyond the specific limits set forth elsewhere in this Agreement.
 - 3. Selecting Independent Testing Laboratory. Assist OWNER in the selection of an independent testing laboratory to perform the services identified in paragraph B2.01 0.
 - 4. Pre-Construction Conference. Paracipate in a Pre-Construction Conference prior to commencement of Work at the Site.
 - 5. Baselines and Benchmarks. As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for locating the Work which in ENGINEER's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed.
 - 6. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction. In connection with observations of Contractor's work in progress while it is in progress.

- a. Make visits to the Site at inter-als appropriate to the various stages of construction, as ENGINEER deems necessary, in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress and quality of the Work. Such visits and observations by ENGINEER, and the Resident Project Representative, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of Contractor's work in progress or to involve detailed inspections of Contractor's work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in this Agreement and the Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and similar methods of general observation of the Work based on ENGINEER's exercise of professional judgment as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any. Based or information obtained during such visits and such observations, ENGINEER will determine in general if Contractor's work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents, and ENGINEER shall keep OWNER informed of the progress of the Work
- the Site, will be to enable ENGINEER's cours to, and representation by the Resident Project Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable ENGINEER to better carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by ENGINEER during the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of ENGINEER's efforts as an experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for OWNER a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to the Contract Documents and that the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents has been implemented and preserved by Contractor. ENGINEER shall not, during such visits or as a result of such observations of Contractor's work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor's work, nor shall ENGINEER have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to Contractor's work, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's furnishing and performing the Work. Accordingly, ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any Contractor's failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 7. Defective Work—Recommend to OWNER that Contractor's work be disapproved and rejected while it is in progress if, on the basis of such observations. ENGINEER believes that such work will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to the Contract Pocuments or that it will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents
- B. Clarifications and Interpretations Field Orders Issue necessary clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents as appropriate to the orderly completion of Contractor's work. Such clarifications and interpretations will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents. ENGINEER may issue Field Orders authorizing minor variations from the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 9. Change Orders and Work Change Directives. Recommend Change Orders and Work Change Directives to OWNER, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work Change Directives as required.
- 10. Shop Drawings and Samples. Review and approve or take other appropriate action in respect to Shop Drawings and Samples and other data which Contractor is required to submit, but only for conformance with the information given in the Contract Documents and compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of corporation or to safety precautions and programs incident thereto. ENGINEER has an obligation to meet any Contractor's submittal schedule that has earlier been acceptable to ENGINEER.
- 11. Substitutes and "or-equal." Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or "or-equal" materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the provisions of paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A.
- 12. Inspections and Tests. Require such special inspections or tests of Contractor's work as deemed reasonably necessary, and receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by Laws and Regulations or the Contract Documents. UNGINEER's review of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents and will not constitute an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents. ENGINEER shall be entitled to rely on the results of such tests
- 13. Disagreements between OWNEE and Contractor. Render formal written decisions on all claims of OWNER and Contractor relating to the acceptability of Contractor's work or the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract

Documents pertaining to the execution and progress of Contractor's work. In rendering such decisions, ENGINEER shall be fair and not show partiality to OWNER or Contractor and shall not be liable in connection with any decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.

- 14. Applications for Payment. Based on ENGINEER's observations as an experienced and qualified design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and accompanying supporting documentation:
 - a. Determine the amounts that ENGINEER recommends Contractor be paid. Such recommendations of payment will be in writing and will constitute ENGINEER's representation to OWNER, based on such observations and review, that, to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge, information and belief, Contractor's work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of sitch work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is ENGINEER's responsibility to observe Contractor's work. In the case of unit price work, ENGINEER's recommendations of payment will include final determinations of quantities and classifications of Contractor's work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Contract Documents). The responsibilities of ENGINEER contained in paragraph A1.05.A.6.a are expressly subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph A1.05.A.6.b and other express or general limitations in this Agreement and elsewhere.
 - b. By recommending any payment, ENGINEER shall not thereby be deemed to have represented that observations made by ENGINEER to check the quality or quantity of Contractor's work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of Contractor's work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in this Agreement and the Contract Documents. Neither ENGINEER's review of Contractor's work for the purposes of recommending payments not ENGINEER's recommendation of any payment including final payment will impose on ENGINEER responsibility to supervise, direct, or control Contractor's work in progress or for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs incident thereto, or Contractor's compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's furnishing and performing the Work. It will also not impose responsibility on ENGINEER to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the moneys pand on account of the Contract Price, or to determine that title to any portion of the work in progress, materials, or equipment has passed to OWNER free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, or that there may not be other matters at issue between OWNER and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid

15. Contractor's Commetton Documents

- a. Receive and review maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, and guarantees.
- b. Receive bonds, certificates, or other evidence of insurance not previously submitted and required by the Contract Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, Shop Drawings, Samples and other data approved as provided under paragraph A1 65. § 10, and the annotated record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The extent of such ENGINEER's review will be limited as provided in paragraph A1 05.A.10
 - c. ENGINEER shall transmit these documents to OWNER.
- 16. Substantial Completion. Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with OWNER and Contractor, conduct an inspection to determine if the Work is Substantially Complete. If after considering any objections of OWNER, ENGINEER considers the Work Substantially Complete, ENGINEER shall deliver a certificate of Substantial Completion to OWNER and Contractor.
 - 17. Additional Tasks—Perform or provide the following additional Construction Phase tasks or deliverables: NONE
- 18. Final Natice of Acceptability of the Work. Conduct a final inspection to determine if the completed Work of Contractor is acceptable so that ENGINEER may recommend, in writing, final payment to Contractor. Accompanying the

recommendation for final payment, ENGINETR shall also provide a notice in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E (the "Notice of Acceptability of Work") that the Work is acceptable (subject to the provisions of paragraph A1.05.A.14.b) to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge, information, and belief and based on the extent of the services provided by ENGINEER under this Agreement.

- B. Duration of Construction Phase. The Construction Phase will commence with the execution of the first Construction Agreement for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon written recommendation by ENGINEER for final payment to Contractors. If the Project involves more than one prime contract as indicated in paragraph A1.03.C, Construction Phase services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts.
- C. Limitation of Responsibilities. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Contractor, or of any of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the Work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for failure of any Contractor to perform or furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents

A1.06 Post-Construction Phase

- A. Upon written authorization from OWNER ENGINEER, during the Post-Construction Phase, shall:
 - 1. Provide assistance in connection with the testing and adjusting of Project equipment or systems.
 - 2. Assist OWNER in training OWN::R's staff to operate and maintain Project, equipment, and systems.
- 3. Assist OWNER in developing procedures for control of the operation and maintenance of, and record keeping for Project equipment and systems.
- 4. Together with OWNER, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work, assist OWNER in consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such defects, and make recommendations as to replacement or correction of Defective Work, if present
 - 5. Perform or provide the following additional Post-Construction Phase tasks or deliverables: NONE
- In company with OWNER or OWNER's representative, provide an inspection of the Project within one month before the end of the Correction Period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work is subject to correction.
- B. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if not otherwise modified in this Exhibit A-1, will terminate at the end of the Correction Period.

PART 2 -- ADDITIONAL SERVICES

- A2.01 Additional Services Requiring OWN1 R's Authorization in Advance
- A. If authorized in writing by OWNER, ENGINEER shall furnish or obtain from others Additional Services of the types listed below. These services will be paid for by OWNER as indicated in Article 4 of the Agreement.
 - 1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans or advances in connection with the Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and impact statements; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project.
 - 2. Field surveying or other services as necessary to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by OWNER.
 - 3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions of the Project designed or specified by ENGINEER or its design requirements including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, OWNER's schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously accepted studies, reports,

Drawings, Specifications, or Contract Documents when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent to the Effective Date of this Agreement or are due to any other causes beyond ENGINEER's control.

- 4. Services resulting from OWNEE's request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase alternative solutions beyond those identified in paragraph A1 0: A d.
- 5. Services required as a result of OWNER's providing incomplete or incorrect Project information with respect to Exhibit B.
 - 6. Providing renderings or models for OWNER's use.
- 7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to, detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses: the preparation of feasibility studies, cash flow and economic evaluations, rate schedules, and appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for the Project; evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting OWNER in obtaining process licensing; detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed by OWNER.
 - 8. Furnishing services of ENGINEUR's Consultants for other than Basic Services.
 - 9. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in paragraph A1.03.C.
 - 10. Services during out of-town travel required or ENGINEER other than for visits to the Site or OWNER's office.
- 11. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured independent review processes, including, but not limited to construction management, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructability teview requested by OWNER, and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other Bidding Documents as a result of such review processes.
- 12. Preparing additional Bidding Documents or Contract Documents for alternate bids or prices requested by OWNER for the Work or a portion thereof
- 13. Determining the acceptability of substitute materials and equipment proposed during the Bidding or Negotiating Phase when substitution prior to the award of contracts is allowed by the Bidding Documents.
- 14. Assistance in connection with Bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for construction, materials, equipment, or services, except when such assistance is required by Exhibit F.
- 15. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work other than as required under paragraph A1.05 A 5, and any type of property surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real property; and providing other special field surveys.
 - 16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the Contract Times set forth in Exhibit C-1.
- 17. Providing assistance in resolving any Hazardous Environmental Condition in compliance with current Laws and Regulations.
- 18. Preparing and furnishing to OWNER Record Drawings showing appropriate record information based on Project annotated record documents received from Contractor
 - 19. Preparation of operation and maintenance manuals.
- 20. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for OWNER in any litigation, arbitration or other dispute resolution process related to the Project.
- 21. Providing more extensive services required to enable ENGINEER to issue notices or certifications requested by OWNER under paragraph 6.01.G of the Agreement

22. Other services performed or furnished by ENGINEER not otherwise provided for in this Agreement

A2.02 Required Additional Services

- A. ENGINEER shall perfects or furnish, without requesting or receiving specific advance authorization from OWNER, the Additional Services of the types listed below. ENGINEER shall advise OWNER in writing promptly after starting any such Additional Services.
 - 1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect changes requested by OWNER so as to make the compensation commensurate with the extent of the Additional Services rendered.
 - 2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than "orsequal" items; and services after the award of the Construction Agreement in evaluating and determining the acceptability of a substitution which is found to be inappropriate for the Project or an excessive number of substitutions.
 - 3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages.
 - 4. Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (1) emergencies or acts of God endangering the Work, (2) an occurrence of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, (3) Work damaged by fire or other cause during construction, (4) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed work by Contractor, (5) acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours, or (6) default by Contractor.
 - 5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection with any partial utilization of any part of the Work by OWNER pirot to Substantial Completion
 - 6. Evaluating an unreasonable claim or an excessive number of claims submitted by Contractor or others in connection with the Work

This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of the Agreement between Services dated	OWNER	and	ENGINEER	rt for	Professional
Gerrie Country	,			NER	Initial:

ENGINEER

OWNER's Responsibilities

Article 2 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties

- B2.01 In addition to other responsibilities of OWNER as set forth in this Agreement, OWNER shall-
- A. Provide ENGINETER with all criteria and full information as to OWNER's requirements for the Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations, and furnish copies of all design and construction standards which OWNER will require to be included in the Drawings and Specifications; and furnish copies of OWNER's standard forms, conditions, and related documents for ENGINEER to include in the Bidding Documents, when applicable.
- B. Furnish to ENGINEER any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports and data relative to previous designs, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site.
- C Following ENGINEER's assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon ENGINEER's request, furnish or otherwise make available such additional Project related information and data as is reasonably required to enable ENGINEER to complete its Basic and Additional Services. Such additional information or data would generally include the following:
 - 1. Property descriptions.
 - 2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions
 - 3. Property, boundary, easement light-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including establishing relevant reference points.
 - 4. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site, drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site, or hydrographic surveys, with appropriate professional interpretation thereof.
 - 5. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations and impact statements, and other relevant environmental or cultural studies as to the Project, the Site, and adjacent areas.
 - 6. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in the Agreement or the Exhibits thereto.
- D. Give prompt written notice to ENGINEER whenever OWNER observes or otherwise becomes aware of a Hazardous Environmental Condition of of any other development that affects the scope or time of performance of ENGINEER's services, or any defect or nonconformance in ENGINEER's services or in the work of any Contractor.
- E. Authorize ENGINEER to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibits A1 and A-2 of the Agreement as required.
- F. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for ENGINEER to enter upon public and private property as required for ENGINEER to perform services under the Agreement.

- G. Examine all alternate solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, proposals, and other documents presented by ENGINEER (including obtaining advice of an attorney, insurance counselor, and other advisors or consultants as OWNER deems appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in writing timely decisions pertaining thereto.
- H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction to approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by ENGINEER and such reviews, approvals, and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of the Project
 - I. Provide, as required for the Project.
 - 1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory, independent cost estimating, and insurance counseling services.
 - 2. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as OWNER requires, Contractor raises, or ENGINEER reasonably requests
 - 3. Such auditing services as OWNER requires to ascertain how or for what purpose Contractor has used the moneys paid.
 - 4. Placement and payment for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications.
- J. Advise ENGINEER of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants employed by OWNER to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructability review.
- K. Furnish to ENGINEER data as to OWNER's anticipated costs for services to be provided by others for OWNER so that ENGINEER may make the necessary calculations to develop and periodically adjust ENGINEER's opinion of Total Project Costs.
- L. If OWNER designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in addition to, ENGINEER to represent OWNER at the Site, define and set forth as an attachment to this Exhibit B the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of ENGINEER.
- M. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by ENGINEER, designate a person or entity to have authority and responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors, and define and set forth the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of ENGINEER as an attachment to this Exhibit B that is to be mutually agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before such services begin.
- N. Attend the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, construction progress and other job related meetings, and Substantial Completion and final payment inspections.
- O. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, and approvals of Samples, materials, and equipment required by the Contract Documents, or to evaluate the performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of OWNER, prior to their incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional interpretation thereof.
- P. Provide inspection or monitoring services by an individual or entity other than ENGINEER (and disclose the identity of such individual or entity to FNGINEER) as OWNER determines necessary to verify:
 - 1. That Contractor is complying with any Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performing and furnishing the Work
 - 2. That Contractor is taking all necessary precautions for safety of persons or property and complying with any special provisions of the Contract Documents applicable to safety.
- Q. Provide ENGINEER with the findings and reports generated by the entities providing services pursuant to paragraphs B2.01.O and P.
 - R. Perform or provide the following additional services:

Initial:

OWNER ___ ENGINEER

Payments to ENGINEEF for Services and Relmbursable Expenses

Article 4 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

ARTICLE 4 -- PAYMENTS TO THE FIGUREER WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS

C4.01 For Basic Services Having A Determined Scope -- Percentage of Construction Cost Method of Payment

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A, except for services of ENGINEER's Resident Project Representative and Post-Construction Phase services, if any, as follows:

- 1. General An amount equal to 12.0 percent of the Construction Cost. This amount includes compensation for ENGINEER's Services and services of ENGINEER's Consultants, if any. The percentage of Construction Cost noted herein accounts for labor, overhead, profit, and Reimbursable Expenses. The total compensation for services under paragraph C4.01 is estimated to be \$88,000.00.
- 2 As a basis for payment to ENGINEER, Construction Cost will be based on one or more of the following determinations with precedence in the order listed for Work designed or specified by ENGINEER:
 - a. For Work designed or specified and incorporated in the completed Project, the actual final cost of the work performed by Contractor and paid by OWNER.
 - b. For Work designed or specified but not constructed, the lowest bona fide Bid received from a qualified bidder for such Work; or, if the Work is not Bid, the lowest bona fide negotiated proposal for such Work.
 - c. For Work designed or specified but not constructed upon which no such Bid or proposal is received, ENGINEER's most recent opinion of probable Construction Cost.
 - d. I abor furnished by OWNER for the Project will be included in the Construction Cost at current market rates including a reasonable allowance for overhead and profit. Materials and equipment furnished by OWNER will be included at current market prices.
 - e. No deduction is to be made from ENGINEER's compensation on account of any penalty, liquidated damagis, or other amounts withheld from payments to Contractor(s).

3. Progress pay hents:

- a. The portion of the amounts billed for ENGINEER's services which is on account of the Percentage of Construction Cost will be based upon ENGINEER's estimate of the proportion of the total services actually completed during the billing period to the Percentage of Construction Cost.
- b. Upon conclusion of each phase of Basic Services, OWNER shall pay such additional amount, if any, as may be a cessary to bring total compensation paid during such phase on account of the percentage of Construction Cost to the following estimated percentages of total compensation payable on account of the percentage of Construction Cost for all phases of Basic Services:

Study and Report Phase	10 %
Preliminary Design Phase	25_%
Final Design Phase	45_%
Bidding or Negotiating Phase	5_%
Construction Phase	15%
	100 %

- c. ENGINIER may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases of the work noted herein but shall not exceed the total percent fee unless approved in writing by the OWNER.
- 4 ENGINEER's estimated total compensation is conditioned on Contract Times to complete the Work not exceeding 30 months. Should the Contract Times to complete the Work be extended beyond this period, the total compensation to ENGINEER shall be appropriately adjusted.
- 5. If more prime contracts are awarded for Work designed or specified by ENGINEER for the Project than identified in Exhibit A-1, ENGINEER shall be compensated an additional amount equal to 10 percent of the Construction Cost for all Basic Services for each prime contract added.
- C4.02 For Basic Services Having An Undetermined Scope -- Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment
- A. Upon amendment to this Agreement providing for the payment of the following described services by the OWNER to the ENGINEER OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services having an undetermined scope as follows.
 - 1. Resident Project Representative Services. For services of ENGINEER's Resident Project Representative, under puragraph A1.05A.2.a of Exhibit A-1, an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of ENGINEER's employees times Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class for all Resident Project Representative services performed on the Project, plus Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's Consultant's charges, if any—The total compensation under this paragraph is estimated to be \$16,500.00 based upon Contract Times as set forth in paragraph C4.01
 - 2 Post-Construction Phase Services. For Post-Construction Phase services under paragraph A1.06 of Exhibit A-1, IF ANY an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of ENGINEER's employees times Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class for all services performed on the Project, plus Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's Consultant's charges, if any. The total compensation under this paragraph is estimated to be \$1650.00.
- C4.03 For Additional Services
 - A. OWNER shall pay FNGINEER for Additional Services as follows.
 - 1 General. For services of ENGINEER's employees engaged directly on the Project pursuant to paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A.1, except for services as a consultant or witness under paragraph A2.01 A.20, an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of ENGINEER's employees times Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class for all Additional Services performed on the Project, plus Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's Consultant's charges, if any
 - 2 Serving as a Witness. For services performed by ENGINEER's employees as witnesses giving testimony in any litigation, arbitration or other legal or administrative proceeding under paragraph A2.01.A.20, at the rate of \$1,500.00 per day or any portion thereof (but compensation for time spent in preparing to testify in any such litigation, arbitration, or proceeding will be on the basis provided in paragraph C4.03.A.1). Compensation for ENGINEER's Consultants for such services will be on the basis provided in paragraph C4.06

C4.04 For Reimburs able Expenses

- A. When not included in compensation for Basic Services under paragraph C4-01, OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Reimbursal le Expenses at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit C-1.
- B. Reimbursable Expenses include the following categories: transportation and subsistence incidental thereto; obtaining bids or proposals from Contractor(s): providing and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; subsistence and transportation of Resident Project Representative and their assistants; toll telephone calls and telegrams, reproduction of reports, Drawings, Specifications, Bidding Documents, and similar Project-related items in addition to those required under Exhibit A, and, if authorized in advance by OWNER, overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. In addition, if authorized in advance by OWNER, Reimbursable Expenses will also methods expenses incurred for computer time and the use of other highly specialized equipment.
- C. The amounts payable to ENGINEER for Reimbursable Expenses will be the Project-related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by I NGINEER, plus all invoices external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to the Project, the latter multiplied by a Pactor of 1.1.
- D. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of January 1) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to ENGINEER.

C4.05 Standard Frourly Rines

- A. Standard Pourly Rates are set forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit 1 and include salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the cest of customary and statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project operating costs, and operating margin or profit
- B. The Standard Hourly Rates may be adjusted annually (as of lanuary 1) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to ENGINEER.

C4.06 For ENGINEER's Consultant's Charges

A. Whenever compensation to ENGIN FER herein is stated to include charges of ENGINEER's Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by ENGINEER's Consultant to ENGINEER times a Factor of 1.1.

C4.07 Factors

A. The external Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's Consultant's Factors include ENGINEER's overhead and profit associated with ENGINEER's responsibility for the administration of such services and costs

C4.08 Other Provisions Concerning Payment

- A. Progress Parments. The portion of the amounts billed for ENGINEER's services which are related to the services identified in paragraphs C4.02 and C4.03, will be during the billing period based on the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of FNGINEER's employees time: the Standard Hourly Rate for each class plus Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's Consultant's charges, if any
- B. Extended Contract Times. Should the Contract Times to considere the Work be extended beyond the period identified in paragraph C4-01, payment for FNGINEER's services shall be continued based on the Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment.

C Estimated Compansation Amounts

ENGINEER's estimate of the amounts that will become payable for Basic Services are only estimates for pouning purposes, are not principle in the parties, and are not the minimum or maximum amounts payable to ENGINEER and it the Agreement

2. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated begin and it subsequently becomes apparent to ENGINEER that a compensation amount thus estimated will be exceeded, ENGINEER shall give OWNER written notice thereof. Promptly thereafter OWNER and ENGINEER shall review the matter of services remaining to be performed and compensation for such services. OWNER shall either agree to such compensation exceeding said estimated amount or OWNER and ENGINEER shall agree to a reduction in the remaining services to be rendered by ENGINEER, so that total compensation for such services will not exceed said estimated amount when such services are completed. If ENGINEER exceeds the estimated amount before OWNER and ENGINEER have agreed to an increase in the compensation due ENGINEER or a reduction in the remaining services, the ENGINEER shall be paid for all services rendered hereunder.

Professional Services dated	n OWNER and ENGINEER (
	Initial:
	OWNER
	ENGINEER

This is EXHIBIT I) consisting of 4 pages, referred to in and

Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative

Paragraph 1.01C of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

D6.02 Resident Project Representative

- A. Upon amendment to this Agreement which provides for payment by the OWNER to the ENGINEER for providing a Resident Project Representative ("RPR"), ENGINEER shall furnish an RPR, assistants, and other field staff to assist ENGINEER in observing progress and quality of the Work. The RPR, assistants, and other field staff under this Exhibit D may provide full time representation or may provide representation to a lesser degree.
- B. Through such additional observations of Contractor's work in progress and field checks of materials and equipment by the RPR and assistants. ENGINEER shall endeavor to provide further protection for OWNER against defects and deficiencies in the Work. However, ENGINEER shall not, during such visits or as a result of such observations of Contractor's work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over the Contractor's Work nor shall ENGINEER have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Contractor's work in progress, for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performing and furnishing the Work, or responsibility of construction for Contractor's failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. In addition, the specific himitations set forth in section A.1.05 of Exhibit A of the Agreement are applicable.
- C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of ENGINEER in the Agreement with the OWNER and in the Contrast Documents and are further limited and described as follows:
 - 1. General. RPR is ENGINEER's agent at the Site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of ENGINEER, and will confer with ENGINEER regarding RPR's actions. RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the Contractor's work in progress shall in general be with ENGINEER and Contractor, keeping OWNER advised as necessary. RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate with OWNER with the knowledge of and under the direction of ENGINEER.
 - Schedules Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and schedule of values prepared by Contractor and consult with ENGINEER concerning acceptability.
 - Conferences and Meetings. Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof.
 - 4 Licison.
 - a. Serve as ENGINEER's liaison with Contractor, working principally through Contractor's superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract Documents.
 - Assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER's haison with Contractor when Contractor's operations affect OWNER's on-Site operations.
 - c Assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details or information, when required for proper execution of the Work.

- 5 Interprete tion of Contract Documents: Report to ENGINEER when clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations as issued by ENGINEER.
- 6 Shop Drawings and Samples:
 - Record date of receipt of Samples and approved Shop Drawings.
 - b Receive Samples which are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify ENGINEER of availability of Samples for examination.
 - c Advise ENGINEER and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal for which RPR believes that the submittal has not been approved by ENGINEER.
- Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggestions for modifications in Drawings or Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to ENGINEER. Transmit to Contractor in writing decisions as issued by ENGINEER.
- 8 Review of Work and Rejection of Defective Work:
 - a Conduct on Site observations of Contractor's work in progress to assist ENGINEER in determining if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.
 - b. Report to ENGINEER whenever RPR believes that any part of Contractor's work in progress will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to the Contract Documents or will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise ENGINEER of that part of work in progress that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.
- 9 Inspections, Tests, and System Startups:
 - a Consult with ENGINFER in advance of scheduled major inspections, tests, and systems startups of important phases of the Work.
 - b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate OWNER's personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof
 - c. Observe, record, and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the test procedures and systems startups $\frac{1}{2}$
 - $d = Accompany\ visiting\ inspectors\ representing\ public or\ other\ agencies\ having\ jurisdiction\ over\ the\ Project, record\ the\ results\ of\ these\ inspections,\ and\ report\ to\ ENGINEER.$
- 10 Records:
 - a. Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, reproductions of original Contract Documents including all Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER's clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, Shop Drawing and Sample submittals received from and delivered to Contractor, and other Project related documents.
 - b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor's hours on the Site, weather conditions, data relative to questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or changed conditions. Site visitors, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send copies to PNGINEER.
 - $c_{\rm s}$ Re. d.d names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, subcontractors, and major suppliers of materials and equipment

- d. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation.
- e. Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPP Project documentation to ENGINEER.

11. Reports:

- a Furnish to ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor's compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittal-
- b. Draft and recommend to ENGINEER proposed Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and Field Orders. Obtain backup material from Contractor.
- Furnish to ENGINEER and OWNER copies of all inspection, test, and system startup reports.
- d. Report immediately to ENGINEER the occurrence of any Site accidents, any Hazardous Environmental Conditions, emergencies, or acts of God endangering the Work, and property damaged by fire or other causes.
- 12. Payment Requests: Review Applications for Payment with Contractor for compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to ENGINEER, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the Work.
- 13. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and other data required by the Specifications to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to ENGINEER for review and forwarding to OWNER prior to payment for that part of the Work.

14. Completion

- a Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to Contractor a list of observed items requiring completion or correction
- b. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and Regulations, including but not limited to those to be performed by public agencies having jurisdiction over the Work.
- Participate in a final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER, and Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected.
- d. Observe whether all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance and issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work

D. Resident Project Representative shall not:

- 1 Authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment (including "or-equal" items).
- 2. Exceed limitations of ENGINFER's authority as set forth in the Agreement or the Contract Documents.
- 3 Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors, suppliers, or Contractor's superintendent

- 4. Advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of Contractor's work unless such advice or directions are specifically required by the Contract Documents.
- 5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over safety precautions and programs in connection with the activities or operations of OWNER or Contractor
- 6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others except as specifically authorized by ENGINEER.
- 7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor.
- Authorize OWNER to occupy the Protect in whole or in part

	OWNER ENGINEER	Initial:
NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK		
PROJECT:		
OWNER:		
OWNER's Construction Centract Identification:		
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT:		
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DATE.		
ENGINEER:		
To: OWNER		
And To: CONTRACTOR		
The undersigned by the by gives notice to the above OWNER and CONTRACTOR that the complianished and performed by CONTRACTOR under the above Contract is acceptable, expressly subject to provisions of the related Contract Documents and the terms and conditions set forth on the reverse side h	o the	
Ву:		

Dated:

This is EXHIBIT E, consisting of 2 pages, referred to in and part of the Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER

for Professional Services dated _____

CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

The Notice of Acceptability of Work ("Notice") on the front side of this sheet is expressly made subject to the following terms and conditions to which all persons who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree:

- 1. Said Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality.
- 2. Said Notice reflects and is an expression of the professional judgment of ENGINEER.
- 3. Said Notice is given as to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge, information, and belief as of the date hereof.
- 4. Said Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services ENGINEER has been employed by OWNER to perform or furnish during construction of the Project (including observation of the CONTRACTOR's work) under ENGINLER's Agreement with OWNER and under the Construction Contract referenced on the reverse hereof, and applies only to facts that are within ENGINEER's knowledge or could reasonably have been ascertained by ENGINEER as a result of carrying out the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER under ENGINEER's Agreement with OWNER and the Construction Contract referenced on the reverse hereof.
- Said Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of CONTRACTOR's performance under the Construction Contract referenced on the reverse hereof nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of CONTRACTOR to furnish and perform the Work thereunder in accordance with the Contract Documents.

This is EXHIBIT G, consisting of 2 pages, referred to in and part of the	
Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER for Professional Services	
dated	

OWNER_ ENGINEER_

Insurance

Paragraph 6.05 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.

G6.05 Insurance

A= The limits of list flity for the insurance equired by paragraph 6.05.A and 6.05.B of the Agreement are as follows:

1. By ENGINEER:

a.	Workers' Compensation	Statutory
Ь.	Employer's Liability 1) Each Accident. 2) Disease, Policy Limit. 3) Disease, Each Employee	\$1,000,000 \$1,000,000 \$1,000,000
C.	General Liability - 1) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 2) General Aggregate;	\$1,000.000 \$1,000.000
d.	Excess or Umbrella Liability - 1) Each Occurrence: 2) General Aggregate:	\$1,000,000 \$1,000,000
e.	Automobile Liability 1) Bodily Injury, a) Each Accident	£:,000,000
	2) Property Damage: a) Each Accident [or]	\$1,000,000
	Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): Each Accident	000,000,12
ſ.	Other (specify):	
	Professional Liability	\$2,000,000

	2.	Ву	OWNER:	
		a	Workers' Compensation:	Statutory
		ъ.	Employer's Liability	
			I) Each Aco Ient	000,000.
			2) Disease, Policy Limit	51.000,000
			3) Disease, Each Employce	\$1,000,000
		C.		
			1) General Aggregate:	\$1,000,000
			2) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and	
			Property Damage):	\$1.000,000
		d	Excess Umbreila Liability	,
			1) Each Occurrence:	\$1.000,000
			2) General Aggregate:	\$1,000,000
				,
		e.	Automobile Liability	
			1) Bodily Injury:	
			a) Each Acordent	5!,000,000
			2) Property Damage:	
			a) Each Accident	000,000,12
			-,	000,000,10
		1	or}	
			1) Combined Consta Line	
			1) Combined Single Limit (Bodilly Lawrenced Property 1)	
			(Bodily Injury and Property Damage):	
			Each Accident	\$1,000,000
		ſ.	Other (specify)	
		••	(a) const	
				N/A
В.	Addı	tione	al Insureds	
	1.	The I	following persons or entities are to be listed on CV	WNER's policies of insurance as additional insureds as
рго	vided	in pa	uagraph 6.05 B.	THER is policies of insurance as additional insureds as
		•	W F	
	ź	l. į	OHN D. MERCER & ASSOCIATES, INC.	
		1	ENGINEER	
	ŀ),		
		E	ENGINEER'S CONSULTANT	

Ċ,

ENGINEER'S CONSULTANT

This is EX Agreement lated	between	OWNER	and	page, refer	red t for	n in a Profes:	nd par	t of the Services
						OWNE	R	Initial:

ENGINEER A

Allocation of Risks

Paragraph 6.11 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

16.11.B Limitation of ENGINEER Liability

- 1. ENGINEER's Liability I instead to Amount of ENGINEER's Compensation. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the total liability, in the aggregate, of ENGINEER and ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and ENGINEER's Consultants, and any of them, to OWNER and anyone claiming by, through, or under OWNER for any and all claims, losses, costs, or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in any way related to the Project or the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract, or warranty express or implied of ENGINEER or ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, or ENGINEER's Consultants, or any of them, shall not exceed the total compensation received by ENGINEER under this Agreement.
- 2. Exclusion of Special, Invidental, Indirect and Consequential Damages. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and not withstanding any other provision in the Agreement, ENGINEER and ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and ENGINEER's Consultants shall not be liable to OWNER or anyone claiming by, through, or under OWNER for any special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the Project or the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to any such damages caused by the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract, or warranty express or implied of ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, or ENGINEER's Consultants, or any of them.
- 3. Agreement Not to Claim for Cost of Certain Change Orders OWNUR recognizes and expects that certain Change Orders may be required to be issued as the result in whole or part of imprecision, incompleteness, errors, omissions, ambiguities, or inconsistencies in the Drawings, Specifications, and other design documentation furnished by ENGINEER or in the other professional services performed or furnished by ENGINEER under this Agreement ("Covered Change Orders"). Accordingly, OWNER agrees not to sue and otherwise to make no claim directly or indirectly against ENGINEER on the basis of professional negligence, breach of contract, or otherwise with respect to the costs of approved Covered Change Orders unless the costs of such approved Covered Change Orders exceed 10% of Construction Cost, and then only for an amount in excess of such percentage. Any responsibility of ENGINEER for the costs of Covered Change Orders in excess of such percentage will be determined on the basis of applicable contractual obligations and professional liability standards. For purposes of this paragraph, the cost of Covered Change Orders will not include any costs that OWNER would have incurred if the Covered Change Order work had been included originally without any imprecision, incompleteness, error, omission, ambiguity, or inconsistency in the Contract Documents and without any other error or omission of ENGINEER related thereto. Nothing in this provision creates a presumption that, or changes the professional liability standard for determining if, ENGINEER is liable for the cost of Covered Change Orders in excess of the percentage of Construction Cost stated above or for any other Change Order. Wherever used in this paragraph, the term ENGINEER includes ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and ENGINEER's Consultants.

ORDINANCE NO. 2011-2293

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FREEPORT, TEXAS, CONTAINING A PREAMBLE; CONTAINING FINDINGS OF FACTS; AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012; CONTAINING SAVINGS CLAUSES; CONTAINING A SEVERANCE CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL TAKE EFFECT AND BE IN FORCE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Subsection (a) of Section 102.007 of Chapter 102 of the Local Government Code and the provisions of Article 9 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Freeport (hereinafter sometimes "the City"), the budget for the 2011-2012 fiscal year of the City was finally approved by the City Council, being the governing body thereof, by its Ordinance No. 2011-2286, read, passed and adopted on the 12th day of September, 2011, (hereinafter sometimes "the Budget"); and,

WHEREAS, Subsection (b) of Section 102.009 of the Local Government Code provides that, after final approval of the budget, the governing body of a municipality may spend municipal funds only in strict compliance with the budget, except in an emergency, but Section 102.010 of said Code provides that the provisions of Chapter 102 thereof do not prevent the governing body of such municipality from making changes in the budget for municipal purposes; and

WHEREAS, Subsection (c) of Section 102.009 of said Code provides that the governing body of a municipality may authorize an expenditure as an amendment to the original budget only in the case of grave public necessity to meet an unusual and unforeseen condition that could not have been included in the original budget through the use of reasonably diligent thought and attention; and,

WHEREAS, Section 9.16 of the City's Home Rule Charter provides that the budget may be amended and appropriations altered in accordance therewith in cases of public necessity, the actual fact of which shall have been declared by the City Council; and,

WHEREAS, the adoption of this ordinance and the amendment of the Budget is necessary for and in the best interest of the health, safety and general welfare of the inhabitants of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FREEPORT, TEXAS:

SECTION ONE (1): FINDINGS OF FACT

In connection with the amendment and revision of the Budget, the City Council of the City makes the following findings:

- (1) The amendments and revisions set forth in the Budget were the result of numerous public workshop meetings called and conducted in the manner required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, codified as Chapter 551, Government Code.
- (2) A public hearing was held on the Budget on September 7, 2010, and conducted in the manner required by Section 102.006 of the Local Government Code and the City's Home Rule Charter.
- (3) Notice of such public hearing was published in the Brazosport Facts, a newspaper of general circulation in and the official newspaper of the City in the manner and time required by Chapter 102 of said Code and the City's Home Rule Charter.
- (4) A grave public necessity exists and to meet an unusual and unforeseen conditions that could not have been included in the original budget through the use of reasonably diligent thought and attention and the Budget must be amended and revised with respect of the new or additional expenditures set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof, such unusual and unforeseen conditions also being set forth in said Exhibit "A".
- (5) The proposed changes are set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof.
- (6) All of the changes set forth in Exhibit "A" are for municipal purposes.
- (7) The several amounts stated in Exhibit "A" as the amended or revised expenditures are hereby appropriated to and for the objects and purposes therein named.
- (8) The contingent appropriations, as amended and revised in said Exhibit "A", do not exceed three (3%) percent of the total amended and revised budget appropriations reflected therein.

(9) The amended and revised expenditures of the general fund and the debt service fund contained in the Budget, as amended by said Exhibit "A", do not exceed the resources of each fund, as amended and revised.

SECTION ONE (2):

The existing budget of the City of Freeport, Texas, for the fiscal year 2010-2011 is hereby amended and revised as reflected in said Exhibit

SECTION THREE (3):

As required by Subsections (c) and (d) of Section 102.009 of the Local Government Code, upon the passage and adoption of this ordinance, the amended and revised budget adopted hereby shall be filed with the City Secretary of the City to be maintained in the official records of the City, and a certified copy of this ordinance, with Exhibit "A" attached thereto, shall be filed by the City Secretary with the County Clerk of Brazoria County, Texas, and the State Comptroller of Public Accounts for the State of Texas.

SECTION FOUR (4):

nothing contained in this ordinance shall cause any rights heretofore vested to be altered, affected or impaired in any way and all such rights may be hereafter enforced as if this ordinance had not been adopted.

SECTION FIVE (5):

In the event any section or provision of this ordinance is found to be unconstitutional, void or inoperative by the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, such defective provision, if any, is hereby declared to be severable from the remaining sections and provisions of this ordinance and such remaining sections and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION SIX (6):

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and adoption.

Norma Moreno Garcia, Mayor, City of Freeport, Texas

ATTEST:

Delia Muñoz, City Secretary, City of Freeport, Texas

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:

Wallace Shaw, City Attorney, City of Freeport, Texas

C\Freeport.Bud\2011-2012 Bud Amnd-Ord

APPENDIX A - PAGE 1

200 West 2nd Street Freeport, TX 77541 PH: (979) 233-3526 FX: (979) 373-0113



Council

MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor and Council

From: Bob Welch

Re: Request for Amendment of Budgeted Funds # 1

Date: November 7, 2011

We are requesting the following amendments to the 2011-2012 Budget:

医	Bunden Americanian	(H.S.)	์ เราะสาย เกาะสาย เกาะ เกาะสาย เกาะ	្ត្រ :: ១១៣៣ - ១៣៣៣៣៣៣ - ១១៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣៣	
1	MUSEUM DONATION MUSEUM FUNDRAISER RECORD DONATION FROM HAUNTED HOUSE	10-360-910 10-578-483	MUSEUM DONATION MUSEUM FUNDRAISER	1,612	1,612
2	MUSEUM DONATION MUSEUM FUNDRAISER RECORD DONATION TO MUSEUM	10-360-910 10-578-483	MUSEUM DONATION MUSEUM FUNDRAISER	10,000	10,000
3	DONATION-WESTERN SEAFOOD DONATION-FAITH & HEALING VETERINARY HEALTH CARE	10-360-920 10-360-920	MISC. DONATIONS MISC. DONATIONS		500 500
	DONATION-CHIP HOLMSLEY DONATION-SHELIA CARTER DONATION-CAPT. ELLIOTT'S THANKSGIVING SUPER FEAST	10-360-920 10-360-920 10-360-920 10-410-438	MISC. DONATIONS MISC. DONATIONS MISC. DONATIONS THANKSGIVING SUPER FEAST		100 10 200
	RECORD DONATIONS FOR THE THANKSGIVING SUPER FEAST	10-410-438	THANKSGIVING SUPER FEAST	1,310	
4	CAPITAL OUTLAY-FIRE DEPT. REQUEST TO MOVE UNUSED BUDGETED FUNDS FROM PRIOR YEAR TO CURRENT BUDGET FOR PURCHASE OF AMBULANCE	10-530-899	CAPITAL OUTLAY-FIRE DEPT.	139,000	
_	OTHER SUNDRY-AMBULANCE REQUEST TO MOVE UNUSED DONATED FUNDS FROM PRIOR YEAR TO CURRENT BUDGET	20-535-699	OTHER SUNDRY	6,400	

SUMMARY EFFECT ON GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS	ACCT#	CURRENT BUDGET	BUDGET AMEND	AMENDED BUDGET
MUSEUM DONATION	10-360-910		(11,612)	(11,612
MUSEUM FUNDRAISER	10-578-483		11,612	11,612
MISC. DONATIONS	10-360-920		(1,310)	(1,310)
THANKSGIVING SUPER FEAST	10-410-438	10,000.00	1,310	11,310
CAPITAL OUTLAY-FIRE DEPT	10-530-899	-	139,000	139,000
OTHER SUNDRY-AMBULANCE	20-535-699	-	6,400	6,400
Approximation of the second of		A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH		160 400
AND DESCRIPTIONS OF THE PARTY O	errania - Austria / Publis	Net effect on Fund Balance:	DECREASE	145,400



PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Jeff Pynes Chief Executive Officer

October 27, 2011

City Manager

Jeff Pynes City Manager

> re: Replat, Lots 23 & 24, Block 6 Southview Garden S/D - 806 West 11th St. Tax ID 7750-0139-000 & 7750-0140-000

Please place the following item on the November 15, 2011, City Council agenda:

Discuss / consider approving subdivision re-plat of lots 23 and 24, block 6, Southview Garden Subdivisioin, to be known as Cortez and Garcia Subdivision, 806 West 11th Street, Freeport, Texas 77541,

Purpose of the replat is to combine lots 23 and 24, block 6, Southview Garden subdivision, Section 1, into a single lot to become lot 23A, Block 6, Southview Gardens Subdivision. Lots 23 and 24 are removed from the original platted subdivision.

This replat has been approved by the Freeport Planning Commission and the Velasco Drainage District.

N C Hickey

Property

xc Building Dept

/s







THE CITY OF

200 West Second St - Freeport, TX 77541



979.233.3526 • Fax 979.233.8867

Jeff Pynes

City Manager

Chief Executive Officer

Norma Morena Garcia Mayor

> Michelle Kent Councilmerriber Ward A

Fred Bolton Councilmernber Ward B

Nicole Mireles Councilmember Mayor Pro Tem Ward C

Sandra Barbree Couricilmember Ward D November 3, 2011

Mayor Norma Moreno Garcia Freeport City Council Representatives

The City has many financial allocations that are restricted by law based on authorized types of funding. One of these types of accounts is our Court Security Fund. This fund is replenished by municipal court fines and other ancillary court related fees. In this restricted account we fund municipal court type items and things related to the court.

I am asking to use \$11,664.00 to purchase three new police radios for the police department. The balance for this budget cycle of available funds in this restricted account is \$19,702.39.

Jeff Pynes

City Manager









Quote Number: QU0000163962

Effective: Effective To:

18 OCT 2011 17 DEC 2011

Bill-To: FREEPORT, CITY OF 200 W 2ND ST

FREEPORT, TX 77541 United States

FREEPORT, CITY OF 200 W 2ND ST FREEPORT, TX 77541 United States

Ultimate Destination:

Attention:

Name: Jeff Pines

Phone: 979 223 3526

Sales Contact:

Name: Don Day

Email: don.day@h2wr.com

Phone: 8322158006

Request For Quote:

APX6000 Portable - HGAC Pricing

Contract Number:

HGAC (TX) FOB Destination

Freight terms:

1em	Quantity	Nomenclatur	e	Desci
Payı	ment ter	ms:	Net 30 Due	

Item	Quantity	Nomenclature	Description	List price	Your price	Extended Price
1	3	H98UCF9PW6AN	APX6000 700/800 MODEL 2 PORTABLE	\$2,200.00	\$1,760.00	\$5,280 00
la	3	Н38ВТ	ADD: SMARTZONE OPERATION	\$1,200 00	\$960 00	\$2,880 00
lb	3	Q361AR	ADD: P25 9600 BAUD TRUNKING	\$300.00	\$240.00	\$720.00
lc	3	Q806BM	ADD: ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OPERATION	\$515 00	\$412.00	\$1,236.00
d	3	QA0164BAA	ADD: ADVANCED SYSTEM KEY - HARDWARE KEY	\$5.00	\$4.00	\$12.00
c	3	H885BK	ENH: 2 YEAR REPAIR SERVICE ADVANTAGE	\$84 00	584 00	\$252.00
f	3	G996AU	ADD: PROGRAMMING OVER P25 (OTAP)	\$100.00	00.082	\$240.00
g	3	Q947BC	ADD: RADIO PACKET DATA	\$200 00	\$160.00	\$480.00
	3	WPLN7080A	IMPRES CG SU APX7000 US/NA/CA/LA	\$125.00	\$100.00	\$300.00
	3	PMMN4069A	IMPRES RSM, 3 5MM JACK, IP55	\$110 00	\$88.00	\$264 00

Total Quote in USD \$11,664.00

PO Issued to Motorola must:

>Be a valid Purchase Order (PO)/Contract/Notice to Proceed on Company Letterhead. Note: Purchase Requisitions cannot be accepted

>Have a PO Number/Contract Number & Date

>Identify "Motorola" as the Vendor >Have Payment Terms or Contract Number

>Be issued in the Legal Entity's Name

>Include a Bill-To Address with a Contact Name and Phone Number >Include a Ship-To Address with a Contact Name and Phone Number

>Include an Ultimate Address (only if different than the Ship-To)

>Be Greater than or Equal to the Value of the Order

>Be in a Non-Editable Format

>Identify Tax Exemption Status (where applicable)

>Include a Signature (as Required)